1980

Palmer L. Clarkson, Et. Al., Western Heritage, Inc.;
Larry J. Sorensen and Jean Sorensen; Cline G.
Campbell, and Jane Doe Campbell, His Wife; C.
Glenn Robertson and Patricia Robertson :
Appellant'S Brief On Appeal

Utah Supreme Court

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

This is an action by Plaintiffs/Respondents to recover upon a judgment entered by a court in Maricopa County, Arizona. This judgment was entered upon a default which was through no fault of Defendants/Appellants but rather because of errors and omissions of the attorneys representing Defendants/Appellants in the Arizona court. Jurisdiction in Arizona was claimed over the Defendants, which are all residents of the state of Utah, through the exercise of the so called long-arm doctrine.

DISPOSITION IN LOWER COURT

This case was brought before the Third Judicial District Court in and for the County of Salt Lake, Judge Bryant E. Croft, upon a motion for summary judgment, and summary judgment was granted to Plaintiffs/Respondents.

EXACT RELIEF SOUGHT

Defendants/Appellants respectfully requests the Supreme Court of the State of Utah to reverse the judgment of the Lower Court, and to direct said Lower Court that the full faith and credit clause of the United States Constitution does not require the Utah Courts to enforce the judgment entered in the Arizona Court.

STATEMENT OF MATERIAL FACTS

This matter was brought before the Arizona Court by Plaintiff claiming money damages against Defendants herein. Judgment was entered in the Arizona Court by default. The default

resulted because of failure of the Arizona attorney, representing Defendants herein, to file the answer which had been prepared by Defendants and submitted to the Arizona attorney for filing. Sometime after that answer had been prepared and a copy sent to Defendants in the state of Utah, the Arizona attorney withdrew from the case. Defendants subsequently learned that the answer prepared had not been filed in the Arizona Court. Other counsel was obtained and motion was made to set aside the default. This motion was denied. The Court also refused to delay the hearing of the motion to allow representatives of Defendants to travel to Arizona and to appear before the Court. Defendants were delayed in their appearance because of a delay in the airplane flight upon which they had been booked.

The attorney was instructed to appeal to the Arizona Supreme Court and indicated that he would. A considerable time later Defendants were notified by counsel in Arizona that they must provide a Two Hundred and Fifty Dollar (\$250.00) bond which must be provided within five days. Defendants immediately submitted the required funds by United States Mail, but delivery of the mail was not accomplished within the five days time allowed by the Arizona attorney, and thus the appeal was never heard. The Arizona Court thus claimed jurisdiction over Defendants without ever having answered any of the jurisdictional questions involved under the long-arm concept. Defendants/Appellants have never had an opportunity to present their defenses, have not had their day in court, and now Plaintiff and Respondent is attempting

to recover by an action in the State of Utah upon the judgment rendered by the State of Arizona against Utah Defendants and Plaintiffs/Respondents is still attempting to deny to Defendants/Appellants the basic right of due process to have opportunity to be heard before the Court.

ARGUMENT

POINT I: THE FULL FAITH AND CREDIT CLAUSE OF THE UNITED STATES CONSTITUTION DOES NOT PRECLUDE INQUIRY BY THE UTAH SUPREME COURT INTO THE QUESTION OF JURISDICTION OF THE ARIZONA COURT OVER UTAH CITIZENS; INDEED, THE JURISDICTIONAL QUESTION MUST BE INVESTIGATED BY THE UTAH SUPREME COURT.

The editors of ALR3d discuss this question in Volume 23, page 561 as follows:

[I]t is important to note the fundamental principles, particularly as enunciated by the Supreme Court of the United States, as to the extent to which the due process clause of the Fourteenth Amendment affects the power of a state to subject nonresident individuals or foreign corporations to the inpersonam jurisdiction of the local courts. Even if not raised or considered in an individual case, these constitutional questions are always lurking in the record, particularly in a case in which jurisdiction is sustained. . . . While a state may choose not to exercise its jurisdiction over nonresidents and foreign corporations to the full extent permissible by the due process clause of

the Fourteenth Amendment, it has obviously no power to assert in personam jurisdiction in violation of that clause.

The constitutional restriction on jurisdiction of the Fourteenth Amendment was loosened and broadened beginning in 1945 in the leading case of International Shoe Co. v Washington (1945) 326 US 310, 90 L Ed 95, 66 S Ct 154, 161 ALR 1057. The editors of 23 ALR3d commented on the International Shoe case at page 563 as follows:

In lieu of the prior tests, a new test was laid down to the effect that the due process clause requires only that in order to subject a defendant to a judgment in personam, certain minimum contacts within the territory of the forum must be shown so that the maintenance of the suit does not 'offend traditional notions of fair play and substantial justice,' . . . It was also pointed out that an 'estimate of the inconvenience' which would result to the foreign corporation from a trial away from its 'home' or principal place of business is relevant in this connection.

The editors of 23 ALR3d also refer to another leading United States Supreme Court case on page 565. That case is Hanson v Denckla (1958) 357 US 235, 251, 2 L Ed 2d 1283, 1296, 78 S Ct 1228 and indicate that in that matter the Court is

holding that the state trial court lacked in personam jurisdiction over defendant foreign trustee, warned that it is a mistake to assume that this trend 'heralds the

eventual demise of all restrictions on the personal jurisdiction of state courts.' It was pointed out that those restrictions are more than a guaranty of immunity from inconvenient or distant litigation, but a consequence of territorial limitation on the power of the respective state.

Chester J. Antieau, in Volume I of his Modern Constitutional Law §7:14, beginning on page 543, states that the right to be heard on the merits is basic.

The United States Supreme Court has referred to 'the right to be heard' as 'one of the most fundamental requisites of due process.' Again it has stated, 'a fundamental requirement of due process is the opportunity to be heard.'

Antieau cites Brinkerhoff-Faris Trust and Savings Co. v Hill (1930) 281 US 673, 74 L Ed 1107, 1112, 50 S Ct 451 and capitulates the Court's holding as follows:

When the Missouri Court refused to hear a person on the merits of his claim by announcing a new rule that required prior recourse to an administrative agency, at a time when such appeals had already run, the United States Supreme Court held that the Missouri Court had, in so repudiating its earlier position, 'denied to the plaintiff due process of law--using that term in its primary sense of an opportunity to be heard and to defend its substantive right.' 'It is plain,' observed the Court, 'that the practical effect

of the judgment of the Missouri Court is to deprive the plaintiff of property without affording it at any time an opportunity to be heard in its defense. . . . by denying to it the only remedy ever available for the enforcement of its right to prevent the seizure of its property, the judgment deprives the plaintiff of its property.'

Antieau also cites Hovey v Elliott (1897) 167 US 409, 42 L Ed 215, 17 S Ct 841 and capitulates the findings of that Court as follows:

When the Supreme Court of the District of Columbia attempted to deprive a defendant of his right to answer a suit brought against him, and struck his answer, then entered judgment against him, because of his refusal to deliver to a court-appointed receiver certain funds which were the subject of the litigation, a New York court refused to honor the judgment and it was affirmed by the United States Supreme Court which ruled that the first court had deprived the defendant of his property without due process of law by denying him his constitutional right to a day in court.

In 16 Am Jur 2d under Conflict of Laws §13:33 the editors state that "the constitutional requirement of full faith and credit does not automatically compel a forum state to subordinate its own statutory policy to a conflicting public act of another state;" and refers to several citations thereunder.

Public acts can be defined as both statutory or acts of the court.

The Arizona Courts claim to jurisdiction in this matter, based as it is on the long-arm statute concept, must uphold those traditional notions of fair play and substantial justice required by the United States Supreme Court. It should be obvious that these traditional notions of fair play and substantial justice are to be applied equally to the in-state Plaintiff and the out-of-state Defendant. Absent equal application of those traditional notions of fair play and substantial justice, the out-of-state Defendant is now just as much at the mercy of the in-state Plaintiff as formerly the in-state Plaintiff was at the mercy of the out-of-state Defendant. Traditional notions of fair play and substantial justice require that the Utah Supreme Court deny the claim of jurisdiction of Arizona through the long-arm statute concept over Utah citizens, and should deny the Arizona Plaintiff the judgment sought.

POINT II: THE INDIVIDUAL MALE DEFENDANTS WERE ACTING ONLY AS CORPORATE OFFICERS, AND NOT AS INDIVIDUALS, AND EVEN IF JURISDICTION OVER THE CORPORATION WERE ALLOWED OR HELD TO BE PROPER, JURISDICTION OVER THE INDIVIDUAL MALE DEFENDANTS SHOULD NOT BE ALLOWED.

The Court of Appeals of Arizona, Division 1, Department B, in Magidow v Coronado Cattle Company, 19 Ariz. App. 38, 504 P2d 961 (1972) considered very similar facts to those in the present case. The Court cited Hanson v Denckla, previously cited in this brief, with approval indicating that there are still restrictions on the personal jurisdiction of state courts. They also cite

International Shoe Co. v Washington, also previously cited in this brief, as authority for the rule that the United States Constitution does not allow a state to make binding judgment in personam against an individual or corporate defendant with which the state has no contacts, ties, or relations. And that in order to subject a defendant to a judgment in personam he must have certain minimum contacts such that the maintenance of the suit does not offend traditional notions of fair play and substantial justice. The Court then indicates that the only exception to this general rule which might be applicable to the case is found in Rule 4(e) (2), Rules of Civil Procedure, 16 A.R.S., which provides in part: "When the defendant . . . is a person . . . which has caused an event to occur in this state out of which the claim which is the subject of the complaint arose . . ." he may be served personally without the state with the same effect as if served within it. This Rule is intended to give Arizona courts the maximum jurisdiction permitted under the minimum contacts doctrine of the International Shoe case. The Court held,

Reviewing the facts of the present action, it is apparent that neither of the Magidows had any contacts, minimum or otherwise, with Arizona in connection with the subject of the complaint. The contract on which respondent is suing was between itself and Hi-Pro, a corporation. The order for shipment of the cattle which gave rise to this contract was placed by that corporation through one of its agents. . . . It thus appears that

Eloise Magidow had no contacts with respondent of Arizona whatsoever other than those arising from her membership in the marital community with Aaron Magidow; that Aaron Magidow had no such contacts except in his capacity as president of Hi-Pro; and that there is thus no basis for imposing personal liability or personal jurisdiction on either of them by virtue of personal service of the summons outside of the State of Arizona. Respondent has failed to meet its burden of establishing jurisdiction, which is imposed on it when jurisdiction is challenged.

In this matter, as in the case cited above, there has been no showing that the individual male defendants were other than corporate officers nor that they acted in a manner inconsistent with their corporate agency and there has been no showing of any unity of interest between the individual male defendants and the corporate defendant such that it can be said that the separate personalities of each cease to exist. The claim of jurisdiction of the Arizona Court over the individual male defendants herein therefore cannot be sustained and should not be enforced by this court.

POINT III: THE INDIVIDUAL FEMALE DEFENDANTS HAD NO CONTACT WITH ARIZONA, WERE NOT CORPORATE OFFICERS, AND JURISDICTION OVER THEM CANNOT BE CONFERRED BY THE LONG-ARM CONCEPT.

In Magidow v Coronado Cattle Co. cited in the previous point the Arizona Court of Appeals disposed of the idea that

jurisdiction over the wife of one of the corporate officers could be obtained under the long-arm concept. The Court of Appeals of Arizona held in that matter, "It thus appears that Eloise Magidow had no contacts with respondent or Arizona whatsoever other than those arising from her membership in the marital community with Aaron Magidow; . . . Respondent has failed to meet its burden of establishing jurisdiction, which is imposed on it when jurisdiction is challenged."

POINT IV: THE DEFENDANTS WERE PRECLUDED FROM DEFENDING THEMSELVES IN ARIZONA BY THE ERRORS AND OMISSIONS OF ARIZONA COUNSEL FOR DEFENDANTS AND BY THE ACTIONS OF ARIZONA COURT IN FAILING TO GIVE ALLOWANCE FOR THE INCONVENIENCE OF TRIAL AWAY FROM THE DEFENDANTS' HOME OR PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS.

The International Shoe case previously cited held that in addition to the certain minimum contacts that the Court must also make an estimate of the inconvenience which would result to the foreign corporation of a trial away from its home or principal place of business. In this matter the Arizona Court completely failed to give any relevance or weight to that requirement. Before jurisdiction is conferred upon the Court all of the constitutional requirements of that jurisdiction must be met. In this matter the Arizona Court has failed to give any consideration at all to those inconveniences. Because of those inconveniences the Defendants have been unable to comply with the rules of procedure of the Arizona Court, and the Arizona Court thus entered

a default against them and refused to set aside the default knowing full well the particulars of the matter and that the failure to answer was not due to fault on the part of the Defendants but rather to an error and omission on the part of counsel retained by Defendants. The default judgment is a severe and drastic measure and should not be taken unless it is clear that the Defendant has willfully failed to avail himself of the opportunities to present his defenses. In this matter the Court might well take judicial notice of the tendency of Utah Courts to set aside defaults for any showing of an excusable neglect on the part of Defendants' attorney. And certainly the courts of Utah are not inclined to punish Defendants for the failure of Defendants' attorney where Defendants themselves are not at fault. In this matter the errors and omissions of the Arizona attorneys, which may well be a result of the difficulties of communication through the mail and by telephone and lacking face-to-face conferences and cooperative efforts on the part of Defendants and counsel, gave the Arizona Court the legal justification to enter the default of Defendants and to fail to set aside the default. It is also the reason that the Court of Appeals of Arizona did not hear this matter. Where Defendants have been denied due process by being denied the opportunity to be heard in court because of the failure of the Arizona Court to give relevance to the inconveniences experienced by the out-of-state Defendants the Court has deprived itself of jurisdiction if it could have sustained it on any other grounds. Let us note again

that jurisdiction in this matter could only be found in the Arizona Court upon the exception to the general rule denying it jurisdiction which is available through the long-arm statute concept. Thus, by failing to meet all the requirements set up by the United States Supreme Court in the International Shoe case the Arizona Court has failed to meet the requirements of the exception, thus falls under the general rule and is denied any jurisdiction over Defendants in this matter.