1980

Palmer L. Clarkson, Et. Al., Western Heritage, Inc.;
Larry J. Sorensen and Jean Sorensen; Cline G.
Campbell, and Jane Doe Campbell, His Wife; C.
Glenn Robertson and Patricia Robertson : Brief of
Respondent

Utah Supreme Court

STATEMENT OF THE NATURE OF THE CASE

This is an action by plaintiffs/respondents to recover on a foreign judgment.

DISPOSITION IN LOWER COURT

Plaintiffs/respondents made Motion for Summary Judgment before the honorable Bryant H. Croft, in the Third Judicial District, in and for Salt Lake County, State of Utah. The Court found that the foreign court had jurisdiction and granted plaintiffs/respondents' Motion for Summary Judgement.

RELIEF SOUGHT ON APPEAL

Plaintiffs/respondents seek affirmance of the trial

court's decision granting Summary Judgment in their favor.

STATEMENT OF THE FACTS

Since appellants' description of the facts contain irrelevant matters and is incomplete, respondents hereby present the following facts.

On or about the 20th day of July, 1979, respondents filed a complaint against appellants, basing their cause of action upon two foreign judgments, copies of which are attached to said complaint and marked as Exhibits A and B. (R. 2-11) In appellants' answer to the complaint, appellants admit that respondents filed a complaint in Arizona and issued a Summons, "which Summons was duly served upon each of the defendants, pursuant to Arizona law." (R. 22 and 3) Further, appellants admit that they retained Arizona counsel for the purpose of defending said action; that they appeared in said Arizona Court and filed a Motion to Set Aside the Default Judgment; and that they attempted an appeal of said judgment, however, the appeal was not perfected. (R. 23-24)

The Arizona Court found and held that:

Defendants were served with process as required by law; that the default against all defendants was entered herein on October 25, 1978, and thereafter, on or about December 6, 1978, defendants . . . filed a Motion to Set Aside Entry of Default, and a hearing on said Motion took place on March 2, 1979, at which time an Order was entered by this Court denying said Motion The Court proceeded to receive evidence, both oral and documentary, in support of plaintiffs' claims against the defendants, and the Court, deter-

mining that there was no just reason for delay
and expressly directing the entry of Judgement
. . . . (R. 6-7)

There was only one Affidavit submitted at the time of the Summary Judgment herein, which was by respondent Plamer L. Clarkson, Jr., wherein he stated that during the time in question, he was a resident of Scottsdale, Arizona; that he met with the various appellants on numerous occasions in Arizona; that while in Arizona, appellants used his office building, and various charge accounts; and that all of his business dealings with defendants were initiated and transpired in Arizona. (R. 27-28) There was no counter-affidavit submitted by appellants.

Respondents' Motion for Summary Judgment was initially submitted before the Honorable Homer F. Wilkinson, who, after argument, allowed appellants additional time to prepare a memorandum and any affidavits they wished to submit. Thereafter, the matter was heard by the Honorable Bryant H. Croft, who considered all of the evidence presented by the parties, and found that (1) appellants had admitted to proper service of process by the Arizona Court; (2) that the Arizona Court had proper jurisdiction; (3) that the Arizona judgments as filed herein should be given full faith and credit by the Utah Court; and (4) respondents' Motion for Summary Judgment should be granted. (R. 46)

This Appeal followed.

ARGUMENT

I. THE ARIZONA COURT HAD JURISDICTION OVER APPELLANTS AND THE ARIZONA JUDGMENT SHOULD BE GIVEN FULL FAITH AND CREDIT IN UTAH.

Appellants did not raise the issue of jurisdiction in their answer to the complaint, but raised only defenses which went to the merits of the original action in Arizona. In their memorandum against respondents' Motion for Summary Judgment, they argued that they had not had the opportunity to defend against the claim because of the Default Judgment and had therefore been denied due process.

It wasn't until the Appeal that appellants became serious about the jurisdiction question. At the lower court, appellants submitted no affidavits or other evidence concerning jurisdiction or the lack thereof, even though Judge Homer F. Wilkenson, who initially heard the Motion for Summary Judgement, allowed appellants an additional two weeks to submit any evidence they desired. Appellants admitted in their answer that they had been properly served with the summons and complaint in accordance with Arizona law. Further, they attempted to answer the complaint in Arizona and did appear for the purpose of trying to set aside the default judgment.

This court held in Dupler v. Yates, 10 Utah 2d 251, 351 P.2d 624, 636-637 (1960) that if the evidentiary material presented by the moving party is sufficient to support the Motion for Summary Judgement and the opposing party fails to profer any

evidentiary matter when he is presumably in a position to do so, "the courts should be justified in concluding that no genuine issue of fact is present, nor would one be present at the trial." The pleadings are not sufficient to raise an issue of fact in a summary judgment proceeding.

Besides the fact that the record is void of any evidence to support appellants' position, there is otherwise ample evidence and law to support the affirmance of the lower court.

The United States Constitution states in Article IV Section 1, "full faith and credit shall be given in each state to the . . . judicial proceedings of every other state."

This Court has ruled numerous times that the Utah courts are under obligation to give "full faith and credit" to judgments of foreign courts and to regard them as res judicata of the merits of the action. Transamerica Title Ins. Co. v. United Resources, Inc., 24 Utah 2d 346, 471 P.2d 165, 166 (1970) and cases cited therein.

This Court has further stated in Sampsell v. Holt, 155 Utah 73, 202 P.2d 550, 554 (1949):

It is undoubtedly true that the courts of this state have no jurisdiction to alter, amend, or revoke valid judgments and decrees of courts of competent jurisdiction of sister states.

In a case almost identical to the present case, The Fullenwider Company v. Patterson, Utah Supreme Court Case No. 16363, filed April 29, 1980, the defendants were sued as a limited partnership and as individuals in Colorado. After a

default judgment was entered against defendants, they filed a motion to set it aside. The Colorado court held that defendants had been properly served in Utah and that there were no grounds to set aside the default judgment. (Page 2 of the Green Sheets.) The plaintiff then commenced action in Utah against one of the defendants and obtained summary judgment. This Court held on appeal that:

[I]t clearly appears that by seeking affirmative relief in filing his motion to set aside the default judgment in the Colorado court, the defendant . . . entered his appearance and sought an adjudication on the issue as to that court's having acquired jurisdiction over him. The issue as to jurisdiction having thus been raised and resolved by the Colorado court, that ruling is entitled to full faith and credit in our Court, as our district court correctly decided. (page 3 of the Green Sheets)

The Arizona court in the present case made similar findings under almost the identical circumstances as the Fullenwider Company case. When appellants attempted to seek affirmative relief in Arizona, such therefore constituted an appearance, and they thereby subjected themselves to the jurisdiction of the Arizona court, even if there had been no prior jurisdiction.

The appellants claim that in any event, their wives were not involved and the judgment should be reversed as to them. Assuming they were not involved the Arizona court, nevertheless, had jurisdiction over them by reason of Arizona community property law which provides that the spouse of a tortfeasor is liable for any tort committed in the furtherance of community

property or for the purpose of benefitting the community interest. Since the torts of the appellants were committed in Arizona, Arizona law would apply and the wives may be joined as co-defendants with their husbands. Howe v. Haught, 11 Ariz. App. 98, 462 P.2d 395 (1969); Garrett v. Shannon, 13 Ariz. App. 332, 476 P.2d 538 (1970).

II. APPELLANTS RIGHT TO DUE PROCESS HAS NOT BEEN DENIED.

There is no question that the right to defend against a claim is an inherent part of one's right to due process. Nevertheless, there have always been restrictions in the time in which a defendant has to answer a complaint, and for obvious reasons, it is essential to have time limitations.

Appellants are claiming that they have been denied due process because they had been unable to respond to the merits of the original action by reason of the default judgment. If this contention has merit, then no default judgment is final and res judicata. Such would run counter to the entire law relating to default judgments. While it may be true that appellants have an excuse why they failed to answer the complaint, i.e. their attorneys in Arizona failed to file an answer, this is not grounds to disrupt the law. Rather, appellants should seek redress against their attorney in Arizona whose nonfeasance caused the entry of the default judgment.

Appellants have not been denied their right to defend.

They had the same opportunity to file an answer to the complaint as any other person who is lawfully served with a summons and complaint. Appellants position is really that they were unable to respond to the complaint within the required time, and not that they were denied due process.

Counter-balancing policy considerations, such as the desire to have finality to judgments and judicial efficiency, have been the basis for limiting the time in which to answer a complaint. Though the results of these limitations may at times result in laws which appear harsh, they are essential to our judicial system.

In 46 Am. Jur. 2d, Judgments, 654 and 641, respectively, it states:

Judgments rendered by courts of competent jurisdiction are not as a general rule subject to collateral attack on grounds pertaining to the original cause of action. Even the facts that no bona fide debt existed or that the debt or demand was paid or extinguished before the commencement of the action, and that the judgment was entered by default, have been held not to constitute sufficient grounds for a collateral attack upon the judgment. (Emphasis added)

* * *

Indeed, it is immaterial in this respect how irregular the proceedings or how erroneous the judgment may have been.

The citation to the above authorities are not given to imply that the Arizona judgments herein were erroneous or in any way unfounded. On the contrary, respondents believe that said

judgments are fully legitimate and well founded. These authorities, however, emphasizes the fact that a default judgment does not deny due process and that a default judgment should be given the same full faith and credit as any other judgment.